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: “ Plaintiff Entrepreneur Media, Inc. (“EMI™), for its Complaint against
2 American City Business Journals, Inc. and Does 1-10 (“Defendants”), alleges as
3 follows:
4 Jurisdiction and Venue
> 1. This is a civil action alleging trademark infringement, false
6 designation of origin, and unfair competition under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C.
7 §§ 1114(a), 1125(a); unfair competition under California Business & Professions
8 Code §§ 17200 et seq.; California common law trademark infringement and unfair
7 competition; and declaratory relief under the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28
10 U.S.C. § 2201.
H 2. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1121(a) and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a), this Court
12 has subject matter jurisdiction over EMI’s claims for relief for violation of the
3 federal trademark and unfair competition statutes. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
14 § 1338(b), this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over EMI’s state law unfair
5 competition claims, in that the claims are joined with substantial and related
16 claims under the Lanham Act. This Court also has supplemental jurisdiction over
17 EMT’s state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a), in that all of EMI’s
18 ‘ claims arise out of a common nucleus of operative facts.
19 3. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because
=t Defendants have conducted substantial business in this State, as, on information
21 and belief, Defendants have marketed and sold their publications to residents of
22 this State, and maintain offices in this State.
23 4, Venue in this Court exists under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1), (c), as
24 Defendants are deemed residents of this District for venue purposes; and under
25 subsection (b)(2) because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims
26 alleged in this Complaint occurred in this District, as, on information and belief,
j; | Defendants have marketed and sold their publications to residents of this District,
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including, for example, Defendants’ “Los Angeles Business” website.

The Parties

5. EMI is a California corporation, having its principal place of
business at 2445 McCabe Way, Irvine, California 92614.
6. On information and belief, American City Business Journals, Inc.

(“ACBJ”) is a Delaware corporation, having its principal place of business at 120

W. Morehead Street, Suite 400, Charlotte, North Carolina, 28202. ACBJ

publishes business journals in over 30 cities across the country, and offers
websites providing business news for various cities.

7. EMI is ignorant of the true names of defendants Does 1 through 10,
inclusive, and therefore sues those defendants by such fictitious names. EMI is
informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that defendants Does 1 through
10, inclusive, are responsible for the acts alleged in this Complaint. When the
true names of such fictitious defendants are ascertained, EMI will seek leave of
this Court to amend this Complaint to name those individuals or entities.

8. EMI is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that each of
the Defendants was the agent and employee of the remaining Defendants and, at

all times mentioned, acted within the course and scope of such agency and

employment.
Facts Common to All Claims for Relief
EMI and Its Successful ENTREPRENEUR® Brand
9. For over 30 years, EMI (together with its predecessor companies) has

published magazines and books which provide editorial content and other

information, as well as offer products and services related or of interest to

businesses, business owners, and prospective business owners.
10.  EMD’s longstanding marketing and sales efforts have been conducted
primarily under the mark ENTREPRENEUR® (the “ENTREPRENEUR® Mar ).
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11. EMI is the publisher of ENTREPRENEUR® magazine and other
publications incorporating the ENTREPRENEUR® name in their titles.
ENTREPRENEUR® magazine is published monthly with a current paid
circulation, including both subscriptions and newsstand sales, of more than
600,000 in the United States. ENTREPRENEUR® magazine is also sold and
distributed in over 100 foreign countries.

12. ENTREPRENEUR® magazine routinely features articles and
interviews of some of the biggest names in the entrepreneur community, including
Richard Branson, skateboarding icon Tony Hawk, quarterback Drew Brees, and

hip hop mogul Russell Simmons:

BNt g U e < Tty spowm 8 1% o Ik

Entrepfeneur

13. ENTREPRENEUR® magazine also annually publishes, and has
continuously published for over thirty years, the highly anticipated Franchise
500® ranking of America’s top franchises using EMI’s top-secret formula:
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14. EMI also publishes over 200 book titles under the
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ENTREPRENEUR® name and ENTREPRENEUR PRESS® imprint:

0 ¢,
0/7-, on

BUSINESS....
PLANS =

made
easy
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Everything *llestoimrin sommerialand
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fo Know
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1o Create .yimern f’,,ﬂ""""""’
Wealth in ;-M o b
Real Estate ew

STUART I.Ellllll RIDER

BUSINESS

The ONLY mi book iu'll ever need

15. EMI has recently launched many of its most successful titles as e-

Entrepreneur Press and
David H. Bangs |r.

books:
NOW AVAILABLE 2011TITLES, E.,.NENPW
AS eBOOKS! P Pres
5 i g Sl ﬁ'
Start Your () Start Your Owis&> w
GHILD- I:AHE CLOTHING T
SERVICE uTORE BUSINE:
BT — AND MORE AND MOF
Start Your Own Child- Start Your Own Clothing Start Your Own Retail
Care Service (3rd Ed.) Store and More (3rd Ed.) Business and More

16.  EMI also conducts seminars, workshops and other educational
services geared towards how to successfully start and operate businesses. These
events have included the Sales Success Secrets/Business Success Secrets®
Breakfasts sponsored by State Farm Insurance; the Women in Charge
Conferences sponsored by OPEN—American Express; the Business Success
Secrets® Breakfast Seminars sponsored by Deluxe Corporation and Sprint; the
Winning Strategies for Business Conference sponsored by Verizon; and
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Entrepreneur® Magazine’s Growth 2.0 Conferences presented by The UPS

Store®:

ENTREPRENEUR MAGAZINE'S 2011

MEN IN CHARGE
et [0°EN

(o)
€C O N F E R E N C E
IDEAS FOR NOW. INSIGHTS FOR.TOMORROW.

Entrepreneur Magazine's SPONSCRID BY

BUSINESS SUCCESS SECRETS Sprint

A Complimentary Breakfast Seminar FOR BUSINESS

DELUXE

17.  EMI operates a number of websites to further disseminate and
market its content and services, including entrepreneur.com,
EntrepreneurEnEspanol.com, YoungEntrepreneur.com, and

EntrepreneurPress.com:

Entrepreneur Entreggggur
EntrepreneutP

e T T e e e
Pt —n.«_—..._-d:!:-' v J g .9- phliz e g b

Site Map Contact Us

18.  The website at entrepreneur.com has averaged over 6 million unique
visitors and over 52.6 million page views per month, and is ranked in the top
1,100 sites in the United States by Alexa.

19. EMI has also launched apps for iPhones/ iPads, Android and
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Blackberry:

: . Click to Download For Free

20.  EMI’s fame and high-quality content and services have resulted in
numerous co-branding business relationships with some of the top names in news
and business. These co-branding relationships have included MSNBC, Reuters,
PerfectBusiness.com, Princeton Review (ranking top entrepreneurial schools),
Great Place to Work® (annual Best Small & Medium Workplaces rankings), and

Palo Alto Software (Entrepreneur® magazine’s Business Plan Pro® software):

@I\ Entrepreneur
2010
BEST

Smatl.
mvg & Miedium

R E UTE RS US > News Sectors

& Markets & Industries

Il WORK:
[INSTITUTE S

Do You Need a Full-Timer, Contractor or Outsourced Help?

Emm Lessons Learned From Mom inventors

Hew a Young Fashion Designer Stands Outin a Crowded
Market

21.  Through careful cultivation of its various products and services, EMI
has developed an outstanding reputation as an innovator in the field of business
start-up and strategy and has established an extremely loyal customer following.

22.  EMI has received a tremendous amount of public recognition and
acclaim for the products sold and services provided under its ENTREPRENEUR®
brand. Through EMI’s widespread and continuous use of the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, the mark has acquired extensive goodwill, has
developed a high degree of distinctiveness, and has become famous, well known
and recognized as identifying goods and services that originate from EMI.
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23.  The fame and quality of the products and services bearing the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark have been widely recognized through industry awards
and commendations. ENTREPRENEUR® magazine was a finalist in two
categories in Folio’s 2010 Eddie & Ozzie magazine awards, has been named one
of the top performing magazines for four years in “Capell’s Circulation Report,”
and has been honored for its content by receipt of the prestigious Maggie awards
in both 2009 and 2010 from the Western Publishing Association. EMI’s website
at entrepreneur.com has been awarded “Outstanding Achievement in Web
Development” by the Web Marketing Association, and its Entrepreneur Connect
was voted the #1 “Top 10 Social Networks for Entrepreneurs” by Mashable.com.
EMI has also received multiple Integrated Marketing Awards from Min Online
for its magazine and website. In addition, both ENTREPRENEUR® magazine
and the entrepreneur.com website have been named to BtoB magazine’s 2010 and
2011 lists of the top 50 media outlets for business-to-business advertising.

EMI’s Trademark Rights

24. EMI owns, and has obtained United States federal registrations for,
the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, as well as a family of related marks incorporating
the term ENTREPRENEUR, as follows:

REG. NO.
TRADEMARK CLASS: GOODS/SERVICES REG. DATE

ENTREPRENEUR 16: Paper goods and printed matter; namely magazines, 1,453,968

books an(_i .pubhshed reports pertaining to business August 25, 1987
opportunities
First Use in
Commerce:

May 2, 1978
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ENTREPRENEUR 35: Advertising and business services, namely, arranging 2,263,883
for the promotion of the goods and services of others by
July 27, 1999
means of a global computer network and other computer
online services providers; providing business information First Use in
for the use of customers in the field of starting and operating Commerce:
small businesses and permitting customers to obtain July 1992
information via a global computer network and other uy
computer online service providers and; web advertising
services, namely, providing active links to the websites of
others
ENTREPRENEUR 35: Arranging and conducting trade show exhibitions in the 2,502,032
field o'f entrepreneurla! activities, nflmely the start-up and October 30, 2001
operation of small business enterprises
41: Educational services, namely, conducting seminars on First Use in
. . Commerce:
the development and operation of businesses, and
conducting work shops on computer technology, Oct. 18, 1991
telecommunications, marketing, financing options, real
estate management, tax planning and insurance
ENTREPRENEUR.COM | 9: Downloadable podcasts in the field of business, current 3,519,022
events, lifestyle issues, and developments in science and October 21, 2008
technology
35: Providing business information and advice via a web First Use in
; Commerce:
site on a global computer network
38: Broadcasting programs via a global computer network; Sept. 2002
and streaming of audio and video material via the Internet;
telecommunications services, namely, transmission of
podcasts
ENTREPRENEUR 42: Online business networking services in the nature of 3,652,950
CONNECT creating and hosting a community for registered users to
- .. . July 14, 2009
create professional profiles, to participate in group
discussions, to make business contacts, and to upload onto First Use in
the website materials promoting their businesses, products Commerce:
and services April 26,2008
ENTREPRENEUR 35: Advertising and business services, namely, arranging 3,266,532
ENESPANOL.COM for the promotion of goods and services of others by means
. July 17, 2007
of a global computer network and other computer online
service providers; providing business information for the use First Use in
of customers in the field of starting and operating businesses Commerce:

and permitting customers to obtain information via a global
computer network and other computer online service
providers; internet advertising services, namely, promoting
the goods and services of others by providing a web site
with active links to their websites featuring their goods and
services

Oct. 13, 2006

Complaint
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ENTREPRENEUR 16: Paper goods and printed matter, namely, books, 3,470,064
PRESS manuals, prepared reports, work books, study guides, legal
and business forms, and newsletters concerning advice and July 22, 2008
information relating to the subjects of starting, running and First Use in
operating a business, and individuals who succeeded in Commerce:
business, which subjects are of interest to entrepreneurs,
new and existing businesses and members of the general April 1999
public
35: On-line ordering services featuring printed and
electronically downloadable publications, namely, books,
study guides, legal and business forms, and newsletters,
concerning advice and information relating to the subjects of
starting, running and operating a business and individuals
who succeeded in business, which subjects are of interest to
entrepreneurs, new and existing businesses and members of
the general public
ENTREPRENEUR’S 16: Paper goods and printed matter; namely, magazines, 3,204,899
STARTUPS books, booklets and published reports pertaining to business
opporsities T P February 6, 2007
First Use in
Commerce:
Jan. 27, 2006
ENTREPRENEUR 38: Providing online facilities for real-time interaction 3,924,374
ASSIST between website visitors concerning topics of general
interest to entrepreneurs, new and existing businesses and March 1, 2011
members of the general public First Use in
42: Providing website visitors with online non- Commerce:
downloadable software applications in the field of business June 15, 2007
planning and productivity for bookmarking, filing and
tabbing articles found on websites for quicker retrieval, for
creating text documents, spreadsheets and presentations, for
customizing business forms and templates, for selecting and
downloading a selection of business books, for scheduling
event deadlines and appointments with email reminders, and
for assisting in the creation of business plans ]

25.  The above marks are collectively referred to as the “EMI Marks.”
The above registrations are collectively referred to as the “EMI Registrations.”

26. EMI’s registration numbers 1,453,968, 2,263,883, and 2,502,032 for
ENTREPRENEUR® are incontestable pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1065,

27.  The EMI Registrations constitute prima facie evidence that the marks
are valid and that EMI is entitled to the exclusive use of the marks in commerce
throughout the United States on the goods and services listed in the registrations.

28. EMI also has extensive common law rights in the

ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, based on its use of that mark over the last three
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decades.

29.  Through extensive use, marketing, branding and promotion, the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark is well-known and famous, enjoying substantial
recognition, goodwill and association with EMI. The public distinguishes EMI’s
goods and services from those of other publishers and providers of educational
services on the basis of the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark. The ENTREPRENEUR®
Mark is distinctive and has acquired secondary meaning in the United States.

30. The U.S. District Court for the Central District of California held that:

®  “The extensive advertising and public recognition over the past 25
years have established [the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark] as a strong mark in the
industry.”

e The ENTREPRENEUR® Mark “is a strong distinctive mark,
deserving of significant protection.”

e  The ENTREPRENEUR® Mark “has acquired secondary meaning.”
Entrepreneur Media, Inc. v. Smith, No. CV 98-3607 FMC (CTx), 2004 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 24078, at *9-10, 13 (C.D. Cal. June 23, 2004).

31.  The Ninth Circuit reviewed the District Court’s findings and
affirmed them on appeal. Entrepreneur Media, Inc. v. Smith, 101 Fed. Appx. 212,
2004 U.S. App. LEXIS 11567 (9th Cir. 2004).

Defendants and Their Unauthorized Use of the EMI Marks

32.  Defendants market and sell business-oriented publications specific to
cities across the country, including the San Francisco Business Times, the Silicon
Valley/San Jose Business Journal, the Washington Business Journal, and the
Atlanta Business Journal. Defendants also offer companion websites for each of
its journals, as well as online-only content for other cities like Los Angeles.

33.  Defendants also offer a journal in Austin, Texas, the Austin Business
Journal, and a companion website. In or about April 2010, Defendants launched a

Complaint
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new website entitled “ABJ Entrepreneur” (the “ABJ Mark”) located at
abjentrepreneur.com, which Defendants describe as “a weekly look at the
entrepreneurship scene of Central Texas.”

34.  The banner at the top of the website appears as follows:

abi

ENTB}IPRENEUR

A RESOUACE FOR ANYONE STARTING
OR RUNNING A BUBINESS

And the site contains additional logos that appear as follows:

abij

ENTREPRENEUR
J PRENEUR

m
<z
q
o

L YT ™

35.  Defendants filed a federal trademark application on October 28,
2010, for the mark “ABJ ENTREPRENEUR” (Serial No. 76/7051 12) in Class 35
for “providing business information via the Internet,” claiming a first use in
commerce date of April 2010 (the “ABJ Application”). EMI has filed an
opposition to this application concurrently with the filing of this Complaint (the
“Opposition™).

36.  Given EMI’s co-branding efforts with other reputable news
providers, EMI is very concerned that consumers will be confused into believing
that EMI and Defendants have entered into a co-branding project which combines
Defendants’ Austin Business Journal (ABJ) with EMI’s ENTREPRENEUR®
Magazine content. This potential for confusion is heightened by Defendants’
choice of red as the primary color for its website and logo, which is the same

Complaint
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color used by EMI for its logo stylization. Defendants will thus enjoy the benefits
of EMI’s reputation and goodwill based on this consumer confusion, to EMI’s
detriment.

37.  On December 15, 2010, EMI sent a letter to Defendants notifying
them of EMI’s concerns regarding the ABJ Mark, and attempted a business-to-
business resolution of this issue. Defendants ultimately refused to change their
trademark, forcing EMI to file this lawsuit to protect its rights.

Continuing Infringement and Unlawful Conduct

38.  Defendants’ continued use of the ABJ Mark in commerce in
violation of EMI’s valuable intellectual property rights in the EMI Marks is
knowing, intentional and willful, and is causing damage to EMI.

39. Due to Defendants’ willful continuing infringement and unlawful
conduct, EMI is now forced to bring this Complaint to protect its valuable and
longstanding intellectual property rights. EMI had to retain counsel and incur
substantial fees and costs (and continues to incur those fees and costs) to defend
this suit and pursue its claims.

40.  Defendants’ activities have caused and will cause irreparable harm to
EMI for which it has no adequate remedy at law, as Defendants’ conduct
interferes with EMI’s goodwill and customer relationships and will substantially
harm EMI’s reputation as a source of high quality products, as well as dilute the
substantial value of EMI’s name and trademarks.

41.  EMD’s interest in protecting its intellectual property rights, and
products and services from customer confusion outweigh any harm to Defendants.
The public interest is best served by granting the requested relief to EMI against
Defendants in this cause.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Lanham Act - Federal Trademark Infringement - 15 U.S.C. § 1114

Complaint
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42.  EMI incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth in
Paragraphs 9-41 above.

43.  EMI owns the EMI Marks and the EMI Registrations. The
trademarks reflected in the EMI Registrations are strong and distinctive,
designating EMI as the source of all products and services advertised, marketed,
sold or used in connection with the EMI Marks. In particular, the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark has been used for over 30 years, and has been
recognized by a federal district court as a strong and distinctive mark.

44.  EMI is the senior user of the EMI Marks, as it began use of the
marks in interstate commerce prior to Defendants’ first use of the ABJ Mark.

45.  Defendants do not have authorization, license or permission from
EMI to market and sell their website services under the EMI Marks or the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, which are confusingly similar to the ABJ Mark and
closely related to the particular products and services with which the EMI Marks
and the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark have come to be associated.

46.  Defendants were aware of the EMI Marks and the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, as Defendants were on constructive notice based on
EMV’s longstanding federal registrations, and were put on actual notice at least as
early as December 15, 2010, the date of EMI’s letter to Defendants.

47.  On information and belief, Defendants’ use of the ABJ Mark was
intended to confuse consumers into believing that Defendants’ website was
related to or authorized by EMI. Thus, Defendants’ unauthorized use of the ABJ
Mark was, and continues to be, knowing, intentional and willful.

48.  On information and belief, Defendants’ use of the ABJ Mark is likely
to cause confusion or mistake, or to deceive as to source, origin, affiliation or
sponsorship of Defendants’ website.

49.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct,
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EMI has been and will continue to be damaged.

50. Defendants’ actions thus constitute trademark infringement.

51. Unless an injunction is issued enjoining any continuing or future use
of the ABJ Mark by Defendants, such continuing or future use is likely to
continue to cause confusion, mistake or to deceive as to source, origin, affiliation
or sponsorship, and thereby to damage EMI irreparably.

52.  Defendants’ activities have caused and will cause irreparable harm to
EMI for which it has no adequate remedy at law, in that (1) the EMI Marks and
the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark comprise unique and valuable property rights that
have no readily determinable market value; (ii) Defendants’ infringement
constitutes an interference with EMI’s goodwill and customer relationships and
will substantially harm EMI’s reputation as a source of high quality goods and
services; and (iii) Defendants’ wrongful conduct, and the damages resulting to
EML, are continuing. Accordingly, EMI is entitled to injunctive relief pursuant to
15 U.S.C. § 1116(a).

53.  Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1117(a), EMI is entitled to an order:

(a) requiring Defendants to account to EMI for any and all profits derived by
Defendants from their actions, to be increased in accordance with the applicable
provisions of law; and (b) awarding all damages sustained by EMI caused by
Defendants’ conduct.

54.  Defendants’ conduct was intentional and without foundation in law,
and pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), EMI is as a result entitled to an award of
treble damages against Defendants.

55.  Defendants’ acts make this an exceptional case under 15 U.S.C.

§ 1117(a), and EMI is thus entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs.
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Lanham Act - Unfair Competition and False Designation of Origin -
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15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) _
56. EMI incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth in

Paragraphs 9-41 above.

57.  The EMI Marks, and in particular the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, are
strong and distinctive, designating EMI as the source of all goods and services
advertised, marketed, sold or used in connection with those marks. In addition,
by virtue of EMI’s decades-long use of the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark in
connection with its products and services, and its extensive marketing,
advertising, promotion and sale of its products and services under that mark, the
EMI Marks, and in particular the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, have acquired
secondary meaning, whereby the consuming public of this District, the State of
Texas and throughout the United States, associates the EMI Marks with a single
source of products and/or services.

58.  EMI is the senior user of the EMI Marks, as it began use of the
marks in interstate commerce prior to Defendants’ first use of the ABJ Mark.

59.  Defendants were aware of the EMI Marks and the
ENTREPRENEUR® Mark, as Defendants were on constructive notice based on
EMTI’s longstanding federal registrations, and were put on actual notice at least as
early as December 15, 2010, the date of EMI’s letter to Defendants.

60.  On information and belief, through their use of the confusingly
similar ABJ Mark, Defendants intended to, and did in fact, confuse and mislead
consumers, and did misrepresent and create the false impression that EMI
somehow authorized, originated, sponsored, approved, licensed or participated in
Defendants’ use of the confusingly similar ABJ Mark.

61. Infact, there is no connection, association or licensing relationship
between EMI and Defendants, nor has EMI ever authorized, licensed or given
permission to Defendants to use the EMI Marks in any manner whatsoever.
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62.  On information and belief, Defendants’ use of the ABJ Mark is likely
to cause confusion as to the origin and authenticity of Defendants’ website and
related products/services and is likely to cause others to believe that there is a
relationship between Defendants and EMI.

63.  Asadirect and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct,
EMI has been and will continue to be damaged.

64. Defendants’ actions thus constitute false designation of origin and
unfair competition.

65. Defendants’ activities have caused and will cause irreparable harm to
EMI for which it has no adequate remedy at law, in that (i) the EMI Marks and
the ENTREPRENEUR® Mark comprise unique and valuable property rights that
have no readily determinable market value; (ii) Defendants’ infringement
constitutes an interference with EMI’s goodwill and customer relationships and
will substantially harm EMI’s reputation as a source of high quality goods and
services; and (iii) Defendants’ wrongful conduct, and the damages resulting to
EMI, are continuing. Accordingly, EMI is entitled to injunctive relief pursuant to
15U.8.C. § 1116(a).

66.  Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1117(a), EMI is entitled to an order-

(a) requiring Defendants to account to EMI for any and all profits derived by
Defendants from their actions, to be increased in accordance with the applicable
provisions of law; and (b) awarding all damages sustained by EMI caused by
Defendants’ conduct.

67. Defendants’ conduct was intentional and without foundation in law,
and pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), EMI is as a result entitled to an award of
treble damages against Defendants.

68. Defendants’ acts make this an exceptional case under 15 U.S.C.

§ 1117(a), and EMI is thus entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs.
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Unfair Competition - California Business & Professions Code 88 17200 ez seq.

69. EMI incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth in
Paragraphs 9-41 above.

70.  The above-described acts and practices by Defendants are likely to
confuse, mislead or deceive the general public and therefore constitute unfair and
fraudulent business practices in violation of California Business & Professions
Code §§ 17200, et seq.

71.  The above-described acts further constitute business acts that violate
Sections 32 and 43 of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1114 and 1125(a) and are
therefore unlawful.

72.  The unfair, unlawful, and fraudulent business practices of
Defendants described above present a continuing threat and are meant to deceive
members of the public.

73.  Asadirect and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct,
EMI has been injured in fact and has lost money and profits, and has suffered
injury to its reputation and goodwill. Such harm will continue unless Defendants’
acts are enjoined by the Court. EMI has no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, EMI is entitled to an injunction prohibiting Defendants from
continuing the practices described above.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Common Law Trademark Infringement

74.  EMI incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth in
Paragraphs 9-41 above.

75.  EMI has valid and protectable common law rights in the EMI Marks.

76.  EMI is the senior user of the EMI Marks.

77.  Defendants’ conduct, as described above, constitutes infringement of

Complaint
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: EMI’s common law rights in the EMI Marks.
2 78.  Defendants’ use of the EMI Marks on unauthorized services is likely
3 to cause confusion as to the origin of Defendants’ services and is likely to cause
4 others to believe that there is a relationship between Defendants and EMI.
> 79.  Defendants’ wrongful acts have permitted and will permit them to
6 receive substantial profits based upon the strength of the reputation of EMI and
7 the substantial goodwill it has built up in the EMI Marks.
8 80.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct,
7 EMI has been and will continue to be damaged.
10 81.  Unless an injunction is issued enjoining any continuing or future use
l of the EMI Mark, such continuing or future use is likely to continue to cause
12 confusion and thereby to damage EMI irreparably. EMI has no adequate remedy
13 at law.
k4 FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
15 Common Law Unfair Competition
16 82.  EMI incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth in
17 Paragraphs 9-41 above.
18 83.  EMI has expended significant time and expense in developing the
19 EMI Marks and the high-quality products and services it markets and sells under
20 those marks. The EMI Marks have been very successful and have developed a
21 substantial reputation and goodwill in the marketplace.
22 84.  Through their actions as described above, Defendants have
23 misappropriated EMI’s efforts and are exploiting the EMI Marks and EMI’s -
24 reputation to market and sell its products and services under the ABJ Mark.
25 These actions constitute unfair competition.
26 85.  Asadirect and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct,
;: EMI has been and will continue to be damaged.
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86.  Unless an injunction is issued enjoining Defendants’ unfairly
competitive conduct, EMI will continue to be damaged irreparably. EMI has no
adequate remedy at law.

87.  On information and belief, Defendants have acted willfully,
intentionally and maliciously, such that EMI is entitled to punitive damages.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Declaratory Relief

1. EMI incorporates by reference the factual allegations set forth in
Paragraphs 9-41 above.

2. An actual and justiciable controversy has arisen and now exists
between EMI and Defendants, in that EMI contends that (a) Defendants’ use of
the ABJ Mark constitutes trademark infringement, false designation of origin, and
unfair competition under the Lanham Act and state law, and (b) the ABJ Mark
should not be registered by the Patent and Trademark Office. Defendants contend
that their mark is not infringing, and that the ABJ Application should be accepted

by the Patent and Trademark Office and a registration issued.

3. EMI desires a judicial determination and declaration of Defendants’
rights with respect to the ABJ Mark and the ABJ Application.
4. A judicial determination is necessary and appropriate at this time

under the circumstances to provide a complete and final adjudication of all of the
issues in this action, in the interests of judicial efficiency and finality, and to
ensure consistency in the rulings of this Court and the Patent and Trademark
Office.

5. EMI therefore requests a judicial declaration that (a) the ABJ Mark
infringes the EMI Marks, and creates a false designation of origin; (b) Defendants
are unfairly competing with EMI; (c) the Patent and Trademark Office is ordered
to sustain the Opposition to the ABJ Mark in favor of EMI and against

Complaint
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Defendants; and (e) Defendants are prohibited from filing any future applications
for the ABJ Mark or any marks likely to cause confusion with the EMI Marks.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, EMI prays for the following relief:

A.  An injunction ordering that Defendants, their officers, agents,
servants, employees, and attorneys, and all other persons who are in active concert
or participation with them, who receive actual notice of the injunction order by
personal or other service:

(1) cease all use and never use the ABJ Mark, the EMI Marks, or any
other mark likely to cause confusion with the EMI Marks, in connection with the
promotion, advertising, offering for sale, or sale, of any products or services;

(2) never use any false designation of origin, false representation, or
any false or misleading description of fact, that can, or is likely to, lead the
consuming public or individual members thereof, to believe that any products or
services produced, offered, promoted, marketed, advertised, provided or sold by
Defendants are in any manner associated or connected with EMI, or are licensed,
approved or authorized in any way by EMI;

(3) never represent, suggest in any fashion to any third party, or
perform any act that may give rise to the belief that Defendants, or any of their
goods or services, are related to, authorized or sponsored by EMI;

(4) cease all use of the domain name abjentrepreneur.com and any
similar domain names, and never register any domain names that contain any of
the EMI Marks, or any domain names confusingly similar to the EMI Marks;

(5) never unfairly compete with EMI in any manner whatsoever, or
engage in any unfair, fraudulent or deceptive business practices that relate in any
way to the production, distribution, marketing, and/or sale of products and services
bearing the EMI Marks;
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(6) withdraw all pending federal and state trademark applications for
the ABJ Mark, and never apply for or seek to register any mark that is likely to
cause confusion with the EMI Marks.

B.  An order pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a) directing Defendants to file
with this Court and to serve upon EMI’s counsel, within thirty (30) days after the
entry and service on Defendants of an injunction, a report in writing and under oath
setting forth in detail the manner and form in which Defendants have complied
with the injunction.

C.  An order transferring to EMI the domain name abjentrepreneur.com
and any other domain names Defendants own that include “entrepreneur” or are
otherwise confusingly similar to the EMI Marks. |

D.  An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendants
have infringed EMI’s federally registered trademarks in violation of 15 U.S.C.

§ 1114,

E.  An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendants
have created a false designation of origin and/or a false representation of
association, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

F. An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendants
have engaged in unfair competition and acts of unfair and deceptive business
practices in violation of California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 ez seq.

G.  An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendants
have engaged in common law trademark infringement.

H.  An order finding that, by the acts complained of above, Defendants
have engaged in common law unfair competition.

L. An order declaring that (a) the ABJ Mark infringes the EMI Marks,
and creates a false designation of origin; (b) Defendants are unfairly competing

with EMI; (c) the Patent and Trademark Office is ordered to sustain the Opposition

Complaint
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to the ABJ Mark in favor of EMI and against Defendants; and (e) Defendants are
prohibited from filing any future applications for the ABJ Mark or any marks
likely to cause confusion with the EMI Marks.

J. An order pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 11 17(a) compelling Defendants to
account to EMI for any and all profits derived from their unlawful and infringing
conduct.

K. An order awarding EMI damages as follows:

(1) pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 11 17(a), EMI’s actual damages, as well as
all of Defendants’ profits or gains of any kind from their acts of trademark
infringement, false designation of origin, and unfair competition, including a
trebling of those damages;

(2) punitive damages based on Defendants’ unfair competition under
California common law.

L. Anorder pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 11 17(a) finding that this is an
exceptional case and awarding EMI its reasonable attorneys’ fees.

M. An order awarding EMI all of its costs, disbursements and other
expenses incurred due to Defendants’ unlawful conduct, pursuant to 15 U.S.C.

§ 1117(a).
N.  An order awarding EMI interest.
O.  An order awarding EMI such other relief as the Court may deem

appropriate.
Dated: May 11,2011 LATHAM & WATKINSALP

By: /7

Perry J. Viscounty
Jennifer L. Barry
Sean P. McClure

Attorneys for Plaintiff
ENTRE%’RENEUR MEDIA, INC.
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JURY DEMAND
Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Local Rule

38-1, Plaintiff demands a trial by jury.
Dated: May 11, 2011 LATHAM & WATKJNS LLP
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Jenr;ﬂl}i,fer L. Barryy
Sean P. McClure
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY

This case has been assigned to District Judge James V. Selna and the assigned
discovery Magistrate J udge is Arthur Nakazato.

The case number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows:

SACV1l- 722 JVS (ANx)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central

District of California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related
motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge

NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the Summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is
filed, a copy of this notice must be served on all plaintiffs).

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location:

Western Division [X] Southern Division Eastern Division
312 N. Spring St., Rm. G-8 411 West Fourth St., Rm. 1-053 3470 Twelfth St., Rm. 134
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Santa Ana, CA 92701-4516 Riverside, CA 92501

Failure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being retumed to you.

CV-18 (03/06) NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY



Perry J. Viscounty (State Bar No. 132143)
Latham & Watkins LLP

650 Town Center Drive, 20th Floor

Costa Mesa, CA 92626-1925

Telephone: (714) 540-1235

Facsimile: (714) 755-8290

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

ENTREPRENEUR MEDIA, INC., a California CASE NUMBER
corporation,

SACV11-722 JVS(ANx)

PLAINTIFF(S)
V.

AMERICAN CITY BUSINESS JOURNALS, INC.,
a Delaware corporation; and DO ES |—-10,

SUMMONS

DEFENDANT(S).

TO: DEFENDANT(S):

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within __21__ days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you
must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached l!fcomplaint a amended complaint
O counterclaim O cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer

or motion must be served on the plaintiff’s attorney, Perry J. Viscounty , whose address is
Latham & Watkins LLP, 650 Town Center Drive, 20th Floor, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 . If you fail to do so,

Judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file
your answer or motion with the court.

Clerk, U.S. District Court
T e (ille
Dated: By: &I’\G‘m L

(Seal of the Court)

[Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United States agency, or is an officer or employee of the United States. Allowed
60 days by Rule 12(a)(3)].

CV-01A (12/07) SUMMONS
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